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Town Manager

From: Ron Ross < >
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2023 9:19 AM
To: Town Manager
Subject: Re: Easter Essex DIstrict Department of Veteran Services

Sir, Yes I will be able to attend the meeting and provide an update. Keep you posted. 
thank you 
Ron Ross 

On Wed, Jul 19, 2023 at 9:16 AM Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> wrote: 

Ron, 

   That’s disappointing news, we had enjoyed working with Karen.  We’re fortunate that you’re there and willing to help 
out during the transition!   

   I provided an update to the Select Board Chair Wendy Reed.  Would you be interested in attending the upcoming 
Select Board mtg (Monday 7/24) to provide an update to them directly? 

Thanks, 

 Angus 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

Town of West Newbury 

Town Office Building 

381 Main Street 

West Newbury, MA 01985 

(978) 363-1100 x111

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

From: Ron Ross < > 
Sent: Tuesday, July 18, 2023 8:54 PM 

A
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To: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org>; Executive Assistant <exec.assistant@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: Easter Essex DIstrict Department of Veteran Services 

  

Sir, I would like to update you on what is currently going on with Easter Essex DIstrict Department of Veteran Services; 
on Sunday 16 July Karen Tyler submitted her resignation as the district Veteran Service Officer (VSO). Karen has been in 
this position for 8 years and this in my opinion is a huge loss. Karen was hired as the VSO for Lexington/Carlise/New 
Bedford District. She will stay until the end of this month. Also, Bob Snow resigned as the Selectmen Chair from Rowley, 
he stated he has too full of a plate and needs to leave after many years. His replacement will be at the next meeting to 
be held within the next few weeks in order to review resumes / applications for Karen's replacement as the new VSO. 
There should not be any gap in support to the Veterans of West Newbury and the district. I have volunteered to cover 
down on the VSO office to ensure a smooth transition and support to the Veterans and their families. Will keep you 
posted. 

thank you Ron Ross 



B.a.
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Alejandra Chandler 
Conservation Commission Member 

West Newbury, MA     
  
  
  

 

Corporate Sustainability Professional with a track record of success planning, developing and managing 
sustainability initiatives that reduce environmental impact, enhance social responsibility, and optimize 
financial performance. Experienced in negotiating contracts, ensuring compliance with sustainability 
regulations, budget management, and reporting to measure and communicate sustainability performance. 

Areas of Expertise 

Conservation • Corporate Sustainability • Environmental Science • Stakeholder Engagement • Operations 

Project Management • Analytical Problem Solving • Strategic Planning • Impact Assessment • Training 
 

Language Proficiency: Spanish & English 

Technical Skills: Adobe Suite, Microsoft Office, Microsoft Teams 

Experience 

SPS NEW ENGLAND – Salisbury, MA / Remote                                                        Sep 2016 – Present 
 

Sustainability Coordinator (Jan 2020 – Present) 
Developed and lead sustainability programs and manage operations process improvement for SPS Corporate 
Office (100+ team members) including construction business and Atlantic Hospitality Group (120+ team 
members). 
 

Conservation & Environmental Project Management 
 

• Saved over 38.5 tons of CO2 emissions per year since 2020 by creating and implementing SPS Green 
Initiative including compositing solution across SPS and Atlantic Hospitality Group (3 restaurants). 
Achieved 90% success rate as measured by waste collection and contamination instances.  

• Reduced company-wide landfill impact by implementing a comprehensive recycling program and securing 
buy-in and participation from team members. Monitor and track sustainability indicators including energy 
usage and waste generation to inform future initiatives. 

• Promoted healthy local ecosystem and team-wide engagement in sustainability initiatives by establishing 
a company community garden producing fresh produce and providing home for pollinators.  
 

Operations Project Management 
 

• Drove annual cost savings of $7K by establishing a streamlined supply ordering process to reduce 
shipping costs and environmental impact. Trained team of 20 to streamline to 1 point of contact. 

• Negotiated 50%+ savings on facilities maintenance costs while managing vendor selection process and 
ongoing vendor relationship management. 

• Boosted employee morale and productivity through implementation of weekly on-site corporate lunch 
program, bringing new food options to the building, and maintaining water quality standards. 
 

Human Resources Assistant (Sep 2016 – Jan 2020) 
Collaborated with HR Manager to maintain accurate employee data and manage Spanish to English 
documents and training translation. 
 

• Maintained compliance and safety for 300+ employees in the field by providing training for ~20 Spanish-
speaking employees annually in onboarding, anti-harassment, and field safety. 
 
 
 

https://www.newburyportnews.com/news/sps-new-england-committed-to-composting/article_f7f17c12-4af4-11ec-9090-9b25a05d7e3b.html
https://www.newburyportnews.com/news/sps-new-england-committed-to-composting/article_f7f17c12-4af4-11ec-9090-9b25a05d7e3b.html
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MERRIMAC CONSERVATION COMMISSION – Merrimac, MA                           Jul 2022 - Apr 2023 

Alternate Member 
Analyze, implement, and review conservation and sustainability initiatives for the Town of Merrimac as 
member of 10-person commission.  
  

• Ensured business and individual compliance with environmental regulations in collaboration with 
Commission Members. Review permit requests utilizing knowledge of Wetlands Protection Act and 
conservation requirements.  

 

Education  

JOHNS HOPKINS UNIVERSITY – Baltimore, MD                                               Expected Dec 2024 

Master of Science, Environmental Engineering and Science 
 

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY – Manchester, NH                                          Oct 2021 

Bachelor of Science – Environmental Science with a minor in natural resources & conservation 
 

Certifications 

HAZMATEAM INC. – Hudson, NH                                                                               Mar 2023 

HAZWOPER 40 CERTIFIED 
 

IMPERIAL BUSINESS SCHOOL – London, UK/Remote                                               Aug 2020 

Corporate Sustainability 
 

Interests 

Environmental Conservation • Landscape & Commercial Photography & Video – Bacata Photography  
Avid Hiker • International Travel across South America and Europe 
 

https://bacataphotography.com/
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Town Manager

From: Michael Dwyer <dwyer@westnewburysafety.org>
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2023 1:27 PM
To: Town Manager
Subject: Fwd: Municipal Law Enforcement Funding Opportunity

Angus, 

Would it be possible to add this grant to the discussion too? This would be a great opportunity to offset funds to replace 
our aging computers in the police cruisers.  

I’m happy to speak more it it in person. 

Thanks 

Mike 

From: Cheryl Lott <cheryl@masschiefs.org> 
Sent: Friday, July 14, 2023 1:49 PM 
Subject: Municipal Law Enforcement Funding Opportunity 

Edward J. Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 

Municipal Law Enforcement Funding Opportunity 

C
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Deadline: August 23, 2023 

  

The Office of Grants and Research (OGR) will make available 
approximately $2,500,000 through the Byrne JAG Municipal Law Enforcement  

  

Funding Opportunity for local police departments to competitively solicit federal 
funding to address local law enforcement prevention, intervention, and 
suppression programming needs. Eligible police departments may apply for a 
maximum of $50,000. 

  

All proposals must have a law enforcement, criminal justice nexus and be 
structured with a primary focus on impacting a specific public safety need in 
order to be considered for funding. Applicants may request funds for services 
and activities aimed at prevention/intervention, diversion and/or enforcement. 

  

Eligibility: 

Only a police department from a Massachusetts municipality (local unit of 
government) is eligible to apply 

  

Application Deadline:  

August 23, 2023, by 4:00 pm. 

  

Want to learn more? 

Additional information and application materials are available here. 

  

________________________________________________________ 

  

The Office of Grants and Research (OGR) promotes public safety and security in Massachusetts 
communities through the management of grants funds and research programs focused on crime prevention 
and intervention, traffic safety, law enforcement and homeland security initiatives. OGR is the state 
administering agency for federal funds received from the Department of Homeland Security Federal 
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Emergency Management Agency, Department of Justice and National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration and administers safety and security grants authorized by the Massachusetts Legislature. 
OGR manages more than $150 million in state and federal grants that are distributed to state, municipal, 
education, nonprofit and tribal agencies across the Commonwealth.  

  
 

 
  
 
  

 

 

 

Mass Chiefs of Police Assn. | 353 Providence Road, South Grafton, MA 01560  
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Town Manager

From: Michael Dwyer <dwyer@westnewburysafety.org>
Sent: Friday, June 30, 2023 12:42 PM
To: Town Manager
Subject: FW: Law Enforcement Body-Worn Camera Program - Funds Available

Angus, 

I would like to investigate this grant funding opportunity with the select board’s approval. Sgt. Parenteau will begin 
reviewing the program requirements.  

Grant overview: 
This is a reimbursement grant - FY24 
Departments under 50 employees  
To implement new body worn camera programs 
Awards would be granted in September 2023 

https://www.mass.gov/info-details/law-enforcement-body-worn-camera-bwc-program 

Mike 

From: Info at MA Chiefs <info+masschiefs.org@ccsend.com> 
Date: Friday, June 30, 2023 at 12:20 PM 
To: Michael Dwyer <dwyer@westnewburysafety.org> 
Subject: Law Enforcement Body-Worn Camera Program - Funds Available 

Law Enforcement Body-Worn Camera Program

D
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Deadline: July 31, 2023 

 

The Office of Grants and Research (OGR) is making $3,800,000 in state 
funding available to assist municipal police departments implement new or 
expand existing body-worn camera (BWC) programs. This funding may not be 
used for the replacement of equipment used by police departments with 
existing BWC programs. 

 

Eligibility: 

Only municipal police departments are eligible to apply for funding through this 
program. 

 

Application Deadline: 

July 31, 2023 at 4 p.m. 

 

Want to learn more? 

Additional information and application materials are available here. 

 

_____________________________________________________________ 

The Office of Grants and Research (OGR) promotes public safety and security in Massachusetts communities through the 
management of grants funds and research programs focused on crime prevention and intervention, traffic safety, law 
enforcement and homeland security initiatives. OGR is the state administering agency for federal funds received from the 
Department of Homeland Security Federal Emergency Management Agency, Department of Justice and National Highway 
Traffic Safety Administration and administers safety and security grants authorized by the Massachusetts Legislature. OGR 
manages more than $150 million in state and federal grants that are distributed to state, municipal, education, nonprofit and 
tribal agencies across the Commonwealth.  

  
 

  
  

 

 

 

Mass Chiefs of Police Assn. | 353 Providence Road, South Grafton, MA 01560  

Unsubscribe dwyer@westnewburysafety.org  
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Town Manager

From: Vanessa Johnson-Hall <vkjohnson@ecga.org>
Sent: Friday, July 21, 2023 9:44 AM
To: Town Manager
Cc: Cathy Lanois
Subject: Re: Greenbelt Fundraising for Sawmill

Thank you, Angus.  I'll make sure to sign in by 7:30 just in case. 

Vanessa 

On Fri, Jul 21, 2023 at 9:36 AM Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> wrote: 

Based on the posted agenda I doubt this would come up before about 8pm.  If it comes up before you’re on the Board 
can wait to take it up, so if you sign on later that’s fine too.  Their mtgs tend to run til 10pm or later. 

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
Sent: Friday, July 21, 2023 9:02 AM 
To: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> 
Cc: Cathy Lanois <ccl@ecga.org> 
Subject: Re: Greenbelt Fundraising for Sawmill 

F
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Hi Angus, 

  

I can attend via Zoom Monday evening. We don't have any additional details to provide. Would you mind advising me 
on approximate time? 
 
Thank you, 
Vanessa 

  

On Thu, Jul 20, 2023 at 1:57 PM Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> wrote: 

Vanessa, 

   I’m not aware of a prior request for authorization for fundraising on town land (during my 5 years), so there’s not a 
set process for how we consider the request (i.e. whether this is something my office can approve, or whether Board 
approval is needed).  I talked it over with Wendy, and since Pipestave and Mill Pond are under the care and custody of 
the Select Board, we both agreed it makes sense to bring the request to them.  (They would need to approve the 
request for temporary sign).  We’ll put this on for the upcoming 7/24 agenda.  If you have any detail beyond your 
email below, please send it along for inclusion in the Board packet.  If not, they’ll talk it over Monday, and Greenbelt is 
welcome to attend (zoom) or not; either way, we’ll circle back Tuesday. 

  

Thanks, 

  Angus 

  

  

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

Town of West Newbury 

Town Office Building 

381 Main Street 

West Newbury, MA 01985 

(978) 363-1100 x111 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

  



3

From: Vanessa Johnson-Hall <vkjohnson@ecga.org>  
Sent: Monday, July 17, 2023 12:05 PM 
To: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> 
Cc: Cathy Lanois <ccl@ecga.org> 
Subject: Greenbelt Fundraising for Sawmill 

  

Hi Angus, 

  

Greenbelt is starting to ramp up the public portion of our fundraising campaign for the Sawmill Brook Conservation 
Project.  Could Greenbelt have a table with informational materials about the campaign at some Town events, such as 
the Thursday night concerts or soccer games at Pipestave?  Also, would we be able to put up a temporary sign near 
the Mill Pond kiosk at the property? 
 
I'm copying Cathy Lanois, our Director of Development. 

 
Thank you, 
Vanessa 
 

  

--  

_______________________________ 
Vanessa Johnson-Hall 

Director, Land Conservation Division 
Greenbelt | Essex County's Land Trust 

82 Eastern Avenue 

MAIL TO:   P.O. Box 1026 

Essex, MA 01929 
vkjohnson@ecga.org 
Office:  (978) 768-7241 x116 

ecga.org 

  

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 



Town of West Newbury 
Select Board 

Elliot Fund Application 
381 Main Street, West Newbury, MA 01985 | 978-363-1100, Ext. 115 

selectboard@wnewbury.org  

Draft - May 2023 

The Elliot Fund was established as a bequest from Thomas Elliot in 1852 for the benefit of West 
Newbury residents needing financial assistance.  His great niece Emma Elliot Cole further endowed the 
fund with a contribution in 1931 with direction that the Selectman of West Newbury administer the 
fund.  Because there were no specific instructions provided on how this was to be accomplished, this 
document is intended to set forth guidelines and application requirements so that financial assistance 
may be provided as needed to West Newbury residents in an equitable and consistent way. 

Purpose The purpose of the Elliot Fund is providing assistance to residents of West Newbury 
facing financial hardship.  In order to preserve the balance of this fund for long term 
use, assistance will be provided in the form of a low interest loan rather than grants(?) 

Eligibility Residents of West Newbury who have lived in town for more than one (other?) year are 
eligible to apply. 

Other requirements? 

Administration Terms, repayment details, security etc. 

Application In order to be considered for Elliot Fund assistance, residents must complete the 
attached form and present their request at a regularly scheduled Select Board meeting.  
All application information will be kept confidential and the meeting will be held in 
Executive Session to preserve the applicant’s privacy. 

G

mailto:selectboard@wnewbury.org


Elliot Fund Application  

May 2023  Page 1 
 

Please complete the following form to the best of your ability.  You will have a chance to discuss these 
answers with the Select Board in a confidential meeting. 

Name of Applicant  

Address  

Telephone Contact Information  

Email Address  

  
How long have you lived in 
West Newbury? 

 

What type of financial 
assistance are you looking for? 

 

What is the amount of financial 
assistance needed? 

 

What has caused the need for 
financial assistance? 

 

What is the length of time you 
anticipate it would take to pay 
back this loan? 

 

Do you have any means of 
securing this loan? 

 

Is there anything else you 
would like the Select Board to 
consider during evaluation of 
your application? 

 

 



PERSONNEL BYLAW 
[Adopted at the third session of the 1999 Annual Town Meeting] 

  PERSONNEL BYLAW 

Section 1 Purpose and Intent 
The purpose of the personnel bylaw is to establish fair and equitable personnel policies 
and to establish a system of personnel administration based on merit principles that 
ensure uniform, efficient application of personnel policies.  

Section 2 Application 

All town departments and positions shall be subject to the provisions of this bylaw and 
policies adopted pursuant to this bylaw, except elected Town officers and employees 
covered by a collective bargaining agreement (unless such agreement expressly 
incorporates this Bylaw by reference).   

Section 3 Responsibility of the Board of Selectmen 

The Board of Selectmen shall be responsible for the development of a human resources 
system which meets the needs of the Town. The Board of Selectmen shall appoint a 
Personnel Advisory Committee to assist in carrying out its responsibility. The Personnel 
Advisory Committee shall conduct such research and carry out such instructions as the 
Board of Selectmen shall direct including, but not limited to, review of compensation for 
employees, benefits, methods of selection of personnel, performance appraisal, and 
personnel procedures. The Personnel Advisory Committee shall be composed of such a 
number of members for such periods of time as the Board of Selectmen shall so 
determine.   Members of the Personnel Advisory Committee may be removed upon a 
majority vote of the Board of Selectmen after notice to the Committee member and a 
public hearing if so requested. 

Section 4 Personnel Polices 

The personnel policies shall establish a personnel system which shall include, but need 
not be limited to, the following elements: 

(a) Method of administration. A system which assigns responsibility for the
personnel system, including maintaining personnel records, implementing
effective recruitment and selection processes, creating and maintaining a

H.a.
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compensation plan, monitoring the application of policies and periodic 
reviews and evaluation of the personnel system. 

 
 (b) Classification and compensation plan(s), as deemed appropriate. 
 
 (c) Recruitment and selection policies. 
 
 (d) Record keeping system. 
 

(e) Rights and obligation of employees.  
 
 (f) Other elements of a personnel system as deemed appropriate or necessary.  
 
Section 5 Adoption of Policies 

The Board of Selectmen is empowered and authorized by this bylaw to adopt personnel 
policies defining the rights, benefits and obligations of employees subject to this bylaw. 
Such policies shall become effective in accordance with the following procedure: 
 
 (a) The Board of Selectmen may propose new, amended or revised policies; 

any such proposed policy may be proposed at any meeting of the Board of 
Selectmen. 

 
 (b) Any proposed new, amended or revised policies shall be posted for a 

period of at least ten days after being proposed by the Board of Selectmen, 
during which time comments, information and questions regarding any 
proposed policy may be provided to the Board of Selectmen. A public 
hearing shall be held following the ten day posting period. 

 
 (c) Any new, amended or revised policies shall be come effective upon 

approval by a unanimous vote of the Board of Selectmen, unless a specific 
effective date is provided by the Board. 

 
 (d) Copies of new or amended policies shall be posted in prominent locations 

within the Town Office Building. 
 
 

Section 6 Severability 
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The provisions of this bylaw and the policies adopted pursuant to this bylaw are 
severable. If any bylaw provision or policy is held invalid, the remaining provisions of 
the bylaw or policy shall not be affected thereby. 
 
Section 7 Effective Date 

 This bylaw shall take effect on the date of passage of the Personnel Policy. [The 
Personnel Policy was adopted on August 23, 1999] 

 
 



West Newbury
Personnel Policies 

and Administration

Meeting of West Newbury Select Board
Presentation by Angus Jennings, Town Manager

Thursday, October 14, 2021



Overview

• One of Select Board’s and Town Manager’s top policy priorities for 
FY22 is to update the Town’s Personnel Policies

• With adoption of Town Manager Act in 2017, underlying legal 
framework changed, but changes are not yet fully reflected in other 
policy documents (i.e. Bylaws, policies)

• Primary goals for active personnel administration include fairness, 
consistency, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws

• Existing personnel administration strives toward these goals, as well, 
but all will benefit from the clarity that will result from updating Town 
Bylaws and policies as necessary to ensure internal consistency



Goals of Tonight’s Meeting

• Overview of West Newbury legal framework for personnel 
administration

• Overview of current personnel administration framework
• Summary of recent amendments to Personnel Policy 
• Overview of anticipated personnel-related work program and process 

for FY22, incl. (in particular):
• Comprehensive review of/updates to Personnel Policy
• Wage and Job Classification Study (grant-funded)



Legal Framework

• Town Manager Act (Ch. 97 of the Acts of 2017)
• Personnel Policy
• Town Bylaws
• Select Board Policies
• Town Manager/Finance Department procedures



Staff with Roles in Personnel Administration

• Staffing:
• Town Manager

• Broad duties and responsibilities; plus, a “catch-all”
• Town Accountant/Business Manager

• Human resources, wellness programming, payroll
• Treasurer/Collector

• Primarily benefits administration, payroll, maintaining personnel files, incl. 
re workers comp/injured-on-duty claims

• Asst. to Town Manager and Finance Dept.
• Payroll, record-keeping



On several Personnel issues, close interplay 
between Town Manager / Select Board
• Examples include:

• Town Manager charged with implementation of personnel policies; Personnel 
Policies are enacted by the Select Board

• Town Manager or a negotiating committee charged with negotiating collective 
bargaining contracts; contracts subject to approval, ratification and execution by the 
Select Board

• Town Manager charged with proposing a departmental and organizational structure; 
departmental and organization structure subject to approval of Select Board 

• Town Manager charged with recommending the salaries and pay rates for non-union 
employees; salaries and pay rates subject to modification and approval by the Select 
Board

• Town Manager charged with appointing and removal of department heads and any 
other employees for which a method of selection is not provided in the Town 
Manager Act or by law; appointments or removals made by the town manager shall 
be effective 15 calendar days from the date of the filing of a written notice of the 
appointment or removal with the Select Board (unless 15-day period waived)



Town Manager Act (excerpts)

• Sec. 8(a): The town manager of the town of West Newbury shall be 
the chief operating and administrative officer of the town and shall be 
responsible to the board of selectmen for the effective management 
of all town affairs placed in the town manager’s charge by this act, by 
the board of selectmen, by town by-laws or by vote of the town 
meeting and for the implementation of town policies placed in the 
town manager’s charge by the board of selectmen.

• Sec. 8(b) The town manager shall supervise all town departments and 
direct the day-to-day affairs of the town. 



Town Manager Act (excerpts, cont’d)
• Sec. 8(e): The town manager shall oversee the town’s personnel 

system and staff in accordance with town by-laws and shall oversee 
personnel evaluation policies and practices, employee benefit 
programs, enforcement of labor contracts, labor relations, collective 
bargaining, state and federal equal opportunities law compliance in 
the town and such other human resource obligations as designated 
by the board of selectmen.

• Sec. 11(a): The town manager of the town of West Newbury or a 
negotiating committee authorized by the board of selectmen shall 
negotiate collective bargaining contracts on behalf of the board of 
selectmen; provided, however, that such contracts shall be subject to 
the approval, ratification and execution by the board of selectmen. 



Town Manager Act (excerpts, cont’d)
• Sec. 10(a) The town manager of the town of West Newbury shall 

appoint and may remove all department heads as the term may be 
defined in the town departmental and organizational structure and 
any other employees for which a method of selection is not provided 
in this act or by law. 

• Sec. 10(b) Appointments or removals made by the town manager 
pursuant to subsection (a) shall be effective 15 calendar days from 
the date of the filing of a written notice of the appointment or 
removal with the board of selectmen, unless the board of selectmen 
vote to reject such appointment or removal. The board of selectmen 
may waive the 15-day period and allow the action of the town 
manager to take immediate effect.



Town Manager Act (excerpts, cont’d)
• Sec. 4(g): The board of selectmen shall be the licensing authority for 

the town, make necessary rules and regulations regarding the 
issuance of licenses, attach conditions and restrictions to licenses as it 
deems to be in the public interest, enforce the laws and regulations 
relating to such licenses and manage all other non-personnel matters 
as provided by the town by-laws or as provided in the General Laws. 

• Sec. 9(d): The town manager shall annually submit a town 
departmental and organizational structure and that town 
departmental and organization structure shall be subject to the 
approval of the board of selectmen. The town manager shall 
recommend the salaries and pay rates for town employees, except for 
those employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement; 
provided, however, that the salaries and pay rates recommended by 
the town manager shall be subject to modification and approval by 
the board of selectmen.



Unfinished business / loose ends
• With adoption of Town Manager Act in 2017, underlying legal 

framework changed, but changes are not yet fully reflected in other 
policy documents (i.e. Bylaws, policies)

• Former Town Counsel Michael McCarron advised Board: “the purpose 
of the Act was to provide the authority to make the rules, policies and 
directives for the management of the entire town. The process now is 
to implement changes to the Personnel Bylaw, the Town Bylaws and 
the town policies to reflect this new authority.”

• In the absence of clearly written (or in some cases, any written) 
policy, Board/Manager have established some regular procedures for 
certain aspects of personnel administration, to ensure consistent 
administration (such as for revisions to job descriptions)



Unfinished business / loose ends (cont’d)

• Town Auditor (management letter) has noted “confusion over what 
authority exists over the Town departments and the appointed 
boards and committees.”

• Auditor (management letter): “The lack of clarity regarding where 
various authorities rest created inefficiencies that affected the Town’s 
operations in fiscal year 2020.” 

• Auditor (management letter) recommended that “the Town evaluate 
a Town Charter in favor of the current legal framework for Town 
operations, which includes the Town Manager Act read in conjunction 
with various other applicable statutes, Bylaws and policies.”



Town Charter

• Somewhat beyond the scope of tonight’s discussion
• Has been subject of periodic Board discussion since 2018, but timing 

and resource constraints among other competing priorities have 
prevented this from becoming a “front burner” issue

• In the meantime, inefficiencies continue to affect regular operations
• Understanding that any broader reconsideration of West Newbury’s 

form of government is a longer-term matter, and is not formally 
underway, an effort to update Personnel Policy is an important near-
term step



Recent amendments to Personnel Policy 

• Until recently, Board/Manager objective had been to tackle Personnel 
Policy comprehensively, recognizing that many aspects of the existing 
Policy are either outdated, confusing, or incomplete (i.e. silent on key 
questions re personnel administration)

• More recently, Board/Manager have chosen to address known issues/ 
problems on more of a piecemeal basis, understanding that a more 
comprehensive approach will take time and resources



Recent Amendments to Personnel Policy
• Amendments approved in 2021:

• Broadening the number of relatives/loved ones for whom bereavement leave 
may be requested (Sec. 5.4)

• Addition of Juneteenth as a Town holiday (Sec. 7.1)
• Revision to holiday pay for Qualified Part-Time employees (Sec. 7.3)
• Revisions to Recruitment and Hiring (Sec. 2.0 – adding Internal Hiring Policy), 

Employee Development and Training (Sec. 4.3) and Affirmative Action Plan 
(Appendix A)

• Amendments to Personnel Policy include a public hearing, with notice 
to employees at least ten days prior to Select Board vote

• Recent amendments have taken into account employee feedback, 
and have been generally well-received



Personnel-related work program for FY22

• Comprehensive review of/updates to Personnel Policy
• Initial review by General/Labor counsel KP Law
• Process to include series of staff and department head meetings
• Periodic reviews at Select Board meetings
• Adoption of any amendments would be preceded by required hearing notices

• Wage and Job Classification Study (grant-funded)
• Town received Community Compact Best Practices grant (October 2021) to 

fund development of a formal Wage and Classification Plan that details, at a 
minimum, job descriptions, employee grades, and salary ranges, thereby 
providing the town with a tool to make pay decisions that are reasonable in 
comparison to similar work being carried out in all areas of town government.



Some Areas of Initial Focus include:

• Modification of job descriptions or duties
• Hiring practices
• Changes in employee wages or grade level
• Tracking/approval of accrued time off
• Department office hours and employee work schedules
• Performance evaluations



Overarching Goals

• Primary goals for active personnel administration include fairness, 
consistency, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws

• Making sure that all employees are treated fairly and consistently is 
the ultimate objective for policy updates, and is an important factor in 
employee morale and effective staff management

• Clarifying authorities, policies and procedures will benefit employees, 
improve the organization’s overall efficiency, and ultimately benefit 
the Town of West Newbury’s taxpayers and governance



H.b.
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June 16, 2023 

RE: Contract ID – 19MWIPWESTNEBURYWES 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

Town of West Newbury 

381 Main Street 

West Newbury MA 01985 

Dear Manager Jennings, 

Our team has completed the review of the town’s request to extend/amend the referenced MassWorks 

contract, for the grant awarded in 2019, in support of the Plummer Spring Road Bridge Replacement 

Project. Thank you for providing the update and details about the status of the project. 

As outlined in the award letter, this grant was contingent upon the project being completed within three 

years. We certainly understand and appreciate the unexpected delays that can be caused by permitting 

and/or cost escalation issues. In the few cases where these issues get resolved near the end of a contract 

term, we have tried to be flexible, if/when the construction contract has been awarded and the contractor 

has already been mobilized. 

We are sorry to hear about the challenges that your project has faced. Nevertheless, upon review of the 

town’s quarterly reports and amendment request form, it is clear that the infrastructure work has not 

started yet, and that the town doesn’t have a confirmed path for the project to begin construction even by 

this summer. For this reason, we are not able to offer an extension of this contract. 

We highly encourage the town to apply in a future MassWorks round, once the project is ready to 

advance. Your contract manager will be in touch to coordinate the contract close-out process.  

Sincerely, 

Juan R. Vega 

Assistant Secretary for Communities & Programs 

Executive Office of Economic Development (EOED) 

Cc: Wayne S. Amaral, DPW Director, Town of West Newbury 

Spencer Gurley-Green, CFO, EOED 

Nicholas Bulens, Program Administrator, EOED 
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Welcome to
West Newbury!

An A to Z Guide on Everything You'll
Need to Know About Your New Home

New
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Elections and Town Meeting:
All of West Newbury votes at the Annex (at Town Offices,
381 Main St.) in municipal, state, and federal elections. Visit
the Town website or Town Clerk's Office to vote early, vote
by mail, register to vote, or to view sample ballots, Town
Meeting Warrants, and Bylaws! We welcome your
participation in the direct democracy of Town Meeting,
every Spring and Fall.

Dog Licenses:
Via the Town website or in person at the Clerk's Office by May 1st of each year,
residents must license their dogs with proof of an up-to-date rabies vaccine. $15 for
spayed/neutered dogs, $25 otherwise. Residents over 70 years old pay no fee.

Council on Aging/SAGE Center:
COA and the SAGE Center offer a variety of events, services, and programs to
persons 60+ from West Newbury and other communities. SAGE is open Monday-
Thursday from 8am-4:30pm and Friday from 8am-12pm. Services and programs
include: Meals on Wheels, congregate lunch, exercise classes, transportation, a food
pantry, durable medical equipment, foot care, blood pressure clinics, Medicare help
through SHINE, day trips, and many special events! For more information, please
visit www.wnewbury.org/sage-center/newsletters for the most recent SAGE Center
News.

Bill Pay:
Taking care of taxes, fees, and other expenses is
easy, with multiple ways to pay: in person at the
Town Offices, or online through the Town
website! Don't forget! Your water bill needs to
be paid through the Water Department!

http://www.wnewbury.org/sage-center/newsletters


G.A.R. Memorial Library:
Opened in 1937, the Grand Army of the Republic Library offers West Newbury
residents a trove of free vital resources, programs, events, and technology- all by
signing up for a library card. Part of the Merrimac Valley Library Consortium,
your West Newbury card gives you access to 36 area libraries. You can find the
Library at 978-363-1105, 490 Main St., or www.westnewburylibrary.org

Facility Rental:
Need space to hold a birthday bash
or a Scout meeting? Check this out!
West Newbury residents can rent
Town facilities, parks, and meeting
rooms, most of which can be done
with ease online. Email
facilitiesandrec@wnewbury.org
or use go to
westnewburyma.myrec.com

Open Space:
Enjoy abundant natural spaces across West Newbury, a Town that prides itself on
accessible recreation space in field and forest with 16 town-owned trails and
recreation areas and strong local conservation efforts. For more info visit:
https://www.wnewbury.org/open-space-committee

Pentucket Regional School District:
Our town is served by the Pentucket Regional School District (www.psrd.org).
West Newbury children in Pre-K through 6th grade attend John C. Page School,
before attending Pentucket Regional Middle School, 7th-8th grade, and Pentucket
Regional High School, 9th-12th grade.

mailto:FacilitiesandRec@wnewbury.org


MeVA, a curb-to-curb transportation service with wheelchair ramps and
other accessibility features. To reserve a ride with MeVa call 978-469-6878  
and then dial option 3 (Mon.-Fri.) one day in advance of your trip.
NEET (Northern Essex Elder Transport Inc.) is a volunteer transit service
for persons 60+ needing rides to appointments and errands. Complete an
application and reach out to SAGE with details. You can find applications at
SAGE, on NEET's website, and on the Town website.

Public Transportation:
West Newbury is proud to partner with transit options including:

Town Offices:
The Town Offices are home to Select Board meetings, the Town Manager,
the Town Clerk, Tax Collector, and others (a full directory is available online)
offering services including bill pay, notarization, and a place to buy Town
publications like Bylaws and Street Listings. The Offices are open 8am-
4:30pm Monday to Thursday, and 8am-12pm on Friday year round except
state and federal holidays. 

Vital Records (Birth, Death, and Marriage Certificates)
Business Certificates
Dog Licenses (further detail under the Dog License section)
Special Event Permits

Permits, Licenses, and Certificates:
Running a business in West Newbury? Planning a public event or planning to
serve alcohol to the public? Intending to get married? You will need to visit the
Town Clerk's Office, Department of Public Works,  or the Town Clerk portion
of the website to acquire the following items annually or as needed:



Trash Pickup and Recycling:
The Town offers curbside recycling and trash services to its residents (bins
must be out by 6am) or you may use the Pipestave Recycling Center and/or the
Transfer Station on Route 133 in Georgetown. To acquire your bins/stickers,
call the Board of Health at 978-363-1100 x118 or 119. The Board of Health offers
collections sites for hazardous waste at Town Offices including sharps,
batteries, and items containing mercury. Please do not bag curbside recyclables,
nor dispose of mattresses curbside.
For complete rules on recycling and trash pickup, visit the Board of Health's
page on the Town website.

Volunteering:
Our community always needs volunteers to serve on
boards, committees, and commissions in local
government. See the "Volunteer" icon on the
homepage of the Town website for opportunities.

Town Events:
Stay abreast of Town events
including the Memorial Day Parade,
free summer concerts, and other
happenings by clicking "Subscribe to
News". Sign up for CODE RED to
receive emergency alerts to your
phone and email.

Water:
The Water Department handles provision of water to most residents.
Consult their website or vist the Town Offices to pay your water bill,
view water rates, and learn more about local water restrictions.



Town Offices: 
978-363-1100
381 Main St.



Fire Dept. Non-Emergency:

978-363-1213
403 Main St.



Police Dept. Non-Emergency and

Animal Control:
978-363-1111
401 Main St.



G.A.R. Memorial Library

978-363-1105
490 Main St.



Pentucket Regional School District

978-363-2280
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